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Independant Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Reliance Cement Company Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March, 2017, the statement of profit
and foss (including other comprehensive income}, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. :

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial perfermance inctuding other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with refevant
rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibtlity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
errar. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant o the
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
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We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted In India including the Ind AS, of
the financial position of the Gompany as at 31% March, 2017, its financial performance including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31% March 2016 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at 1¢ April 2015 included in these ind AS financial statements, are based on
the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditors (i.e. 31%* March 2016 by M/s Price Waterhouse &
Co. Banglore LLP and 31* March 2015 by M/s Bhandari Dastur Gupta and Assoclates) whose report for the
year ended 31% March 2016 and 31* March 2015 dated 27" May 2016 and 16" May 2015 respectively
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, and have been restated to comply with Ind
AS. Adjustment made to the previously issued said financial information prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought, and obtained ali the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

{c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2017 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 2017 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financlal controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A" and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements ~ Refer Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any on long term long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial staiements as to holding as well as
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30" December 2016
and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer Note 38
to the Ind AS financial statements.
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2. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 {"the Order") issued by the Government of
india In terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

said Order.,

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Yo Fr<

Ajay Gupta
Place : Kolkata Partner
Dated : 22" May 2017 Membership No. 80104
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

{Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ of our report
on even date)

Report on the Internal Financia! Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2017 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financlal reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).
These responsibllities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting. is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reagonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemnal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinioh, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at

318 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn* No. 109208W

Apry FAE

Ajay Gupta.
Place : Kolkata Partner
Dated : 22™ May 2017 Membership No. 90104
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

{Referred to in Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Report on even date)

vi

vii

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year.
In our opinion, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited Yability
partnerships ot other parties required to be covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(jii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the representation
obtained from the management (i) the Company has not granted any loans to any of its directors or any
other person in whom director is interested or given guarantee or provided any security in connection with
any loan taken by him or such other person within the meaning of section 185 of the Act and (i) the
Company has not made any investment, given any loan, given any guaraniee or provided any security in
connection with a loan within the provisions of section 188 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Rules framed there under,

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the records for the year with a view to determine whether they
are accurate and complete.

a) According to the records of the Company, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added fax, cess and other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities. There were no arrears of undispuied statutory dues as at 315 March, 2017, which
were outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no disputed dues which have remained unpaid as on 318 March, 2017 in respect of income
tax or sales tax or service tax or duly of customs or duty of excise or value added tax.

viii On the basis of the verification of records and information and explanations given to us, the Company has
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not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to banks. and dues of debenture holders. The
Company does not have any loans or borrowings from financial institutions { Government in the books of
accounts at any time during the year, The Company has not issued any debentures. Therefore the
question of default in repayment of dues of debenture holders does not arise.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial / further public offer (including debt instruments)
and term loans taken during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from the
management, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers and employees has
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

The Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 of read with Schedule V of the Act.
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The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xil) of the Order are not

Xii
applicable to the Company.

¥ii According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xv According to the Information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from the
management, the Company has nol entered into any non-cash fransactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Regn. No. 109208W
A FAE
Ajay Gupta.

Place : Kolkata Partner

Dated : 22™ May 2017 Membership No. 90104
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No: U26940MH2007PTC173458

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

Particulars

ASSETS

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible assets
Financial assels

Investments

Loans

Others
Other non-cunrent assets
Subtotal (A)

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial assets
investiments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalent
Others
Other current assets
Subtotal (B)

Totat Assets (A+B}

EQUITY AND LEABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Total equity(C)

LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilities
Financial LiabHities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non Current Liabilities {D)

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other financial Liabilities
Provisions
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities (E)

Total Equity and Liabilities {(C+D+E}
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15
16

17
18
19
20
2

As at 31 March
2017

27,04,68,39,523
3.47,56122,074
12,06,98,808

29,76,806
18,66,09,026
38,75,61,077

Amount in Rs.

As at 31 March
2016

27,86,23,02,670
3,13,95,53,398
11,71,76,757

14,03,02,00,000
61,563,543
13,10,02,535
73,63,62,002

As at 1 April
2015

27,85,79,56,941
2,5569,54,411
8,64,06,665

2,00,000
40,29,635
11,22,17,604
1,81,73,89,049

31,21,08,07,314

46,02,17,40,906

32,53,51,54,505

1,39,41,43,617 1,17,34,41,676 82,42,00,863
2,00,06,161 - -
57,85,96,917 49,93,23,313 20,44.93,945
10,66,82,725 55,78,45,380 38,54,02,005
40,27,434 299,22,315 3,69,44,148
2,02,25,22,184 1,94,40,61,925 1,17.65,61,067
5,02,58,79,038 4,20,4594,618 2,71,66,02,208
36,24,57,86,352 50,22,63,35,624 356,2517,56,713

3,12,82,30,000

3,12,82,30,000

1,27,56,65,910

4,48,44,29,133 18,21,95,26,868 7,02,87,68,676
7,61,26,69,133 21,34,77,55,868 8,30,44,34,586
23,13,74,42,671 21,94,68,23,882 18,07,47,76,014
8,26,81,478 7,77,45,064 5,50,70,438
23,22,01,24,149 22,02,75,68,946 19,12,98,46,452
- 2,05,98,31,211 2,20,28,66,573
1,89,60,34,382 1,95,42,32,420 1,97,43,63,271
2,95,21,36,346 2,38/04,33,473 3,08,35,05,231
63,89,548 50,986,142 60,82,667
55,84,42,794 45,14,18,464 48,06,57,933

5,41,30,03,070

6,85,10,09,710

7.81,74,75,675

36,24,57,86,352

50,22,63,35,524

35,25,17,56,713




Balance Sheget as at 31 March 2017 (Contd.)

As per our attached report of even date.

For V.8ankar Alyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reygistration No.109208W

Ajay Gupta Harsh V.Lodha
Partner Chairman
Membership No.090104 (DIN: 00394094)

Kolkata, May 22, 2017
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Arun Aglarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Kolkata, May 22, 2017

MM\M

Bachh Raj Nahar
Managing Director
{DIN: 00049895}

W ‘{WI
Manoj Kumaréehta
Company Secretary




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

Amount in Rs.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

Particulars Notes March 2017 March 2018

INCCME
Revenue from operations 22 18,44,32,77,529 16,62,10,39,037
Other income 23 33,18,73,628 4,24.08,446
Total Income 18,77,51,51,157 16,66,34,47,483
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 1,47,23,81,661 1,36,25,00,573
Purchases of stock in frade 25 1,85,588 12,93,12,870
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 26 (17,04,66,764) (16,68,46,824)
work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 27 78,05,09,967 77,34,92,362
Finance costs 28 2,29,81,12,218 2,44 ,07 99,736
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 1,49,84,69,346 1,46,31,80,143
Other expenses 30 12,60,73,45,932 12,07,46,31,842
Total Expenses 18,48,65,18,958 18,07,70,80,802
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items 28,86,32,199 {1,41,36,33,319)
Exceptional items 4 14,03,02,00,000 -
Loss before tax {13,74,15,67,801) {1,41,36,33,319)
Tax Expenses

Current Tax - -

Deferred Tax - -
Loss for the year {13,74,15,67,801) (1,41,36,33,319)
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 64,70,066 69,55,608
Other comprehensive income for the year 64,70,066 69,55,698
Total comprehensive income for the year {13,73,50,97,735) (1,40,66,77,621)
Earning per Equity Share of Rs 10 each
Basic (Rs) 3 (42.93) (5.83)
Diluted (Rs) (43.93) (8.83)
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 (Gontd.)

As per our attached report of even date.

For V.Sankar Alyar & Go.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.109208W

i

Ajay Gupta
Partner
Membership No.090104

Kolkata, May 22, 2017
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

64{{__ % B e

Harsh V.Lodha Bachh Raj Nahar
Chairman Managing Director
{DIN: 00394084) (DIN: D0049895)
(el
L e\ e
Arun Agarwal Manoj Kumar Mehta
Chief Financlal Officer Company Secretary

Kolkata, May 22, 2017




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Loss after Exceptional ltems & before Tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation
Interest Income
Gain on Sale of Mutul Fund {(FVTPL}
Fair Value of Mutul Fund (FVTPL})
(Profity/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Discard of Fixed Assets / CWIP (Net)
Investment in Subslidiary written off
Provision for Doubtful Debt
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Finance Costs
Share issue expenses
Fair value of loans at amortised cost
Interest rate swap
MTM of forward contract
Unwinding of interest on miine closure liability
Unwinding Interest on Security Deposit
Operating Profit before Working Capltal changes
Adjustments for :
Trade Receivables
Inventories
Loans
Other Financial Asset
Other Current Asset
Other Non Current Asset
Trade Payables
Other Financial liabilities
Other Liabilities
Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Direct Taxes Paid
Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities;
Purchase of Tangible Asset
Purchase of Intangible Asset
Purchase of Capital Work In Progress
Capital Advances

Capital Payables

Sale of Tangible Assets

Investment in subsidiary

(Purchase) of investments

Sale of Investments

Fixed Deposits Net Investment
Interest received

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long term Borrowings

Repayments of |ong Term Borrowings

{Repayments) / Proceeds from Shori Term Borrowings
Proceeds from issue of equity share

Interest Paid

Share Issue expenses

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Opening Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Closing Balance)

Note : The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 statement of cash flows.
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Amount in Rs.

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2017

(13,74,15,67,801)

1,49,84,69,346

March 201§

(1,41,36,33,319)

1,46,31,90,143

(2,02,71,646) (3,75,42,219)
(25,58,146) -
(6,161) -
8,10,972 9,60,907
15,53,64,356 - o
14,03,02,00,000 -
4,75,38,518 -
(4,10,14,934) 14,1572,857
2,29,81,12,218 2,44,07,99,736
- 1,09,60,000
(2,48,75,270} 4,25,74,668
(10,34,512) -
2,89,26,724 -
(28,13,724) (54,06,618)
(4,05,876) 1,10,230
7,22,48,74,064 2,64,38,05,385
{12,68,12,122) (20,48,29,368)
(22,07,01,041) (34,92,40,723)
31,76,737 (21,23,908)
(3,99,85,468) (27,58,129)
(97,84,60,259) (76,75,00,858)
(12,99,15,565) (8,94,69,848)
(4,29,55,859) (16,17,03,708)
(95,30,754) 55,64,25,661
10,70,26,330 (2,92,41,469)
1,55,13,610 75,20,229
2,80,22,28,773 1,60,09,73,264
(78,51,179) (84,02,486)

2,79,43,77,594

1,50,24,80,778

(75,61,00,895)
(1,18,62,032)
(48,17,97,522)
48,55 57,669
10,70,34,019
40,83,282

(1,60,28,61,822)
1,58,54,19,968

(1,47,12,02,784)
(1,56,00,732)
(56,97,20,360)
1,27,99,99,381
7,65,85,301
8,88,206
{14,03,00,00,000)

(1,01,15,000)

(57,90,146)
3,77,76,039 3,75,42,219
(63,85,50,440) _ (14,70,16,23,769)

6,61,31,97.218
(4,88,84,85,627)
(2,08,09,22,211)

(2,25,07,79,198)

1,45,23.61,087
(17,26,61,885)

14,44,99,99,903
(2,43,71,44,720)
(1,09,69,000}

(2,60,69,89,818)

13,28,15,86,285

(45,11,62,664)
55,78,45,389
10,66,82,725

17,24,43,294
38,54,02,095
55,78.45,389




Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017 {Contd.}

As per our attached report of even date.

For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reglstration No.109208W

My Fesbe )
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Ajay Gupta Harsh V.Lodha Bachh Ra] Nahar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membershlp No.090104 (DIN: 00384094) (DIN: 00049895}
Kolkata, May 22, 2017
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NEW DElég'\lN ' Arun Agarwal Manoj Kumar Mehta
FRN 1092 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No: U28940MH2007PTC173458

Statement of Changes in Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Amount

As at 1.4.2015

Changes In equity share capital during 2015-16
Balance as at 31.3.2016

Changes in equity share capital during 2016-17
Balance as at 31.3.2017

1,27,56,65,910
1,85,25,64,000

3,12,82,30,000

3,12,82,30,000

(b) Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus ltems of other
comprehensive
Particulars income (ltems Total impact on
artic Retained earnin Securities that will not he re{  Other equity
9 | Premium Account classified to
Profit and Loss} -
As at April 1, 2015 (1,15,35,65,080) 8,18,77,34,188 (54,00,432) 7,02,87,68,676
Adjustments:
Premium Received on lssue of Equity Shares during 12,50,74,35,813 1259,74,35,813
the year
Loss for the year {1,41,36,33,319) - {1,41,36,33,319)
Other Comprehensive Income
|{I:)lltzl-nn;eassurement gains (losses) on defined benefit . 69,565,608 69,55,698
Total Adjustments (1,41,36,33,319) 12,59,74,35,813 60,55,698 11,19,07 58,192
As at March 31, 2018 {2,56,71,98,399) 20,78,51,70,001 15,55,266 18,21,95,26,868
Adjustments:
Loss for the year (13,74,15,67,801) - (13,74,15,67,801)
Other Comprehensive Income
Fl;x’lz-nn;ealsure.-mfarxt gains (losses) on defined benefit 64,70,066 64,70,066
Transfer to retained earnings to the extent of reduction
in share capital in pursuant to court order (Refer 14,03,02,00,000 (14,03,02,00,000) -
footnote to note 4)
Total Adjustments 28,86,32,199; (14,03,02,00,000) 64,70,0868| (13,73,50,97,735)
As at March 31, 2017 (2,27,85,66,200) 6,75,49,70,001 80,25,332 4,48,44,29,133
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Statement of Changes in Equity {Contd.}

As per our attached report of even date,

For V.Sankar Alyar & Co,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstration No.109208W

e

Ajay Gupta
Partner
Membership No.G90104

Kolkata, May 22, 2017
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Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

™ ————— e
Harsh V.Lodha Bachh Raj Nahar
Chairman Managing Director
{DIN: 00394004) (DIN: 00049895)
Arun Agarwal Manoj Kumar Mehta
Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

1.
1.

1

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies
1 Company Overview

Reliance Cement Company Private Limited ("the Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Birla Corporation
Limited, the flagship company of the M. P. Birla group, w.e.f. 22" August 2016. The Company is incorporated in
India having its registerad office located at Industry House, 2" Floor, 159, Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai ~
400 020. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading of different types of cemant and allied
products. The Company had set up a fully integrated cement unit at Maihar (Madhya Pradesh) and grinding unit
at Butibori {Maharashtra) and Kundanganj (Uttar Pradesh). The company also has limestone and coal mings,

.2 Basis of preparation and Presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS} as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other relevant provisions of the Act,

These financial statements are first financial statement of the Company under Ind AS and as covered by ind AS
101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard. Refer Note no. 2 for an explanation of how the transiticn
from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash fiow.

The financiat statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accruai basis except for
the following:

i. Derivative financial instruments,

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company's normal operating cycle
(twelve months} and other criteria set out in the schedule 1l to the Act.

Company’s financial statements are presented in India Rupees, which Is its functional currency.

" 1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. The management believes that
these estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent. However, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future pericd, An
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originaliy
assessed have been disclosed in note no. 1.4. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgments is included in the relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected ling item in the financial statements,

1.4 Significant Estimates and judgments
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a. Depreciation and useful fives of Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values
of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives and residual values are based on technical evaluation and take into account
anticipated technological changes. Depreciation for future periods is adjusted if thera are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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b. Deferred tax asset:

Non recognition of net deferred tax asset on carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation as a
matter of prudence. Refer note no. 35 to the financial statement.

¢. Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recoygnized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outfiow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated, The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.

d. Estimation of defined benefits obligations — refer note no, 27

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality
and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, anticipation
of future salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to
measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material
impact on the resulting calculations.

1.5 Property, Plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant
and eguipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value
as the deemed cost of the property, ptant and equipment.

Freehold land other than used for mining activity are carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment is provided on straight-line method on the basis of estimated
useful life of the assets except freehold land used for mining activity which is depreciated based on unit of
production method. The expected useful life and the expected residual value are reviewsd at the end of each
financial year. If the expected useful life and the expected residual value of an asset are significantly different its
previous estimates, depreciation is being provided on the revised depreciable amount of the assets over the
remaining useful life.

The management estimates the useful lives for the tangible assets as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life
Leasehold land : Over the period of lease
Freehold mines o Units of production*
Building and roads : 3 - 60 years
Plant and machinery and electrical installations ~ ; 10 - 25 years
Railway sidings : 15 years
Office equipment : 5 years
Gomputer and peripherals X 3-6years
Furniture and fixtures : 10 years
Motor vehicles X 8 years

For the above classes of assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation caried cut, the
management believes thal the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

Y
il NEWDELHI By

FRN 109208W" &
San i

The residual values are not more 5% of the original cost of the assets.

*Cost of freehold land used for mining activities are depreciated on the basis of quantity of minerals actually
exitracted during the year with respect to the estimated total quantity of extractable mineral reserves.

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress includes assets under construction in the course of construction for production or / and
supply of goods or services or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yst determined, are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss.

Mine development expenses includes expenses on account of prospecting, expenses for regulatery clearances,
exploration and evaluation of mineral pre-operative expenditure incidental / directly attributable to development,
borrowing cost etc. These expenses are carried forward and disclosed ‘Project development expenditure’ and
will be capitalized under appropriate head once the mine starts the commercial production.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior io its
intended use, are considerad as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital work in progress.

Intangible Assefs

Computer and other licensed software are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Mining Rights:

Mining Rights covered under are stated at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated
amortisation & accumulated impairment loss, if any. Estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site at present value are also capitalized as separately as ‘Mine Closure asset',

Intangible assets are amortised using straight line method over its useful life except mining right which are
amortised based on unit of production method. The management estimates the useful lives for the intangible
assets as follows:

Intangible asset Useful life
Computer softwares : 3 years
Licensed software 1 Over the license period
Mining rights and development : Unit of production®

*Cost of mining rights are depreciated on the basis of quantity of minerals actually extracted during the year with
respect to the estimated total quantity of extractable mineral reserves,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is dohe at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and
intangible) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset /
cash generating unit is made. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's net selling
price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expectad to arise from
the conlinuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, the recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. The smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit (CGU). An asset or
CGU whose carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indicaticn
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have
decreased.
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1.9,

1.10

1.12

Stripping cost

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as an asset if such cost
provides a benefit in terms of improved access to ore in future periods and following criteria are met.

¢ |tis probable that the future economic benefits (improved access to an ore body) associated with the
stripping activity will flow to the entity

«  The entity can identify the component of an ore body for which access has been improved, and
*  The costs relating to the improved access to that component can be measured reliably

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated on a unit of production basis over the life of the identified
component of the ore body that became more accessible as a result of the stripping activity and is then stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, The expenditure which cannot be
specifically identified to have been incurred to access ore is charged to revenue, based on stripping ratio

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Company as lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

A leased assel is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease tem.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or ioss on a straight-line basis cver the period of
the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expecled general inflation to compensate
for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Raw material, fuel, stores and spare paris,
packing materials and traded goods cost includes cost of purchases and other cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to the present location and condition. Cost is determined using weighted average method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods cost comprises of raw material, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overhead. Cost is determined using weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Finangial Instruments
1 Financial asset
i. Initial recognition and Measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities, which are not fair vaiue through
profit and loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

T T T e,
TRKAR AVAR 3

5

7 NEWDELHI A5,
O, RN 109208W°7 (&
%, RS

RIEREG RGOS




Subsequent measurement
Financia! assets carried at Amonrtised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash fiows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on principal outstanding.

Financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A financial asset Is subsequently measures at fair value through other comprehensive income Iif it is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and

selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal outstanding.

Financial asset at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost based on expected
credit loss model (ECL). The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment {oss
allowance on trade receivables. The Company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses historical loss
experience to determine the impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. At each reporling date,
the historical observed default rales are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are
analysed.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and Measurement

All financial llabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in profit and
loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For
trade and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to short term maturity of these instruments.

Equity instruments

The Company measuras its equity investment other in subsidiary at fair value through profit and loss.
However, where the Company’s managsment makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present
fair value gains and losses on specific equity instruments in other comprehensive income (currently no such
cholce made), there is no subsequent reclassification on sale or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses to
the statement of profit and loss.

Interest income is recognized using effective interest rate method. Dividends are recognized In the
statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established.
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5  Derecognition of financiai instruments

The Company derecognizes financial asset when the contractual righis to the cash flows from the financlal
assel expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,
A financial liability (or part of financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

1.13 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps and cross currency swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. The
Company does net hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

1.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at net of transaction cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption amount is recegnized in the
statement of profit and loss over the period of borrowings using the effective interest rate.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified as liabilities. The
dividend on these preference shares is recognized in statement of profit and loss as finance cost.

1.15 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits includes salaries and wages, provident fund, gratuity, compensated absences and other
welfare and terminal benefits.

Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in eéxchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefit includes performance incentive, salaries and wages, bonus and leave travel allowance and other
welfare and terminal benefits.

Defined contribution plans:

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, superannuation, etc are recognized as on
expense during the year in which the employee renders the related service.

ESI

The Company makes contribution towards employee state insurance scheme (ESIS), a defined contribution
benefit plan for qualifying employees, The Company's contiibution fo the ESIS is deposited by the Company
under the Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, The contributions deposited with authorities are recognized as
on expense during the year

Compensated absence:

Benefits comprising compensated absences as per company policy constitute other long term employee
benefits. The liability for compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an
independent actuary at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss. .
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1.16

1.17

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such definad
bensfit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present valug of the estimated future
cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans, is based on the prevailing market yields on government securities as at the balance sheat date.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet
with a charge or ocredit recagnised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is
not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- Service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
selflements);

- Net interest expense orincome; and
- Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line itam
‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The Company has taken the group policy with Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited to meet its
obligation towards gratuity. Liability with respect to the grafuity plan is determined based on an actuarial
valuation done by an independent actuary.

Foreign Currency Transactions and transalations
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee {INR), which is Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and Translations:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transactions dates,
Realised gains and losses on seltlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates
and resultant exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss except exchange
differences relating certain long term monetary items outstanding as at 31%t March, 2018 in so far as they relate
to the acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying amount of such, in accordance the option available
to the Company under Ind AS 101.

Income fax
Current income tax

Current income tax represents the tax currently payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment
to the tax in respect of the previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.
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1.18

119

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporling date and are recognised 1o the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is
na longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset {0 be
utilised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclosed as
revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:
* The Company has transferred risk and rewards incidental to ownership to the customer.

= The Company relains neither continuing managerial involvement o the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

+ ltis probable that the economic bensfits associated with the transactions will flow to the Company

+ It can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect uitimate collection.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of retums and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term which is consistent with market practice.

Sale of services:

In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proportionate completion method
when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from
rendering the service and are recognised net of service tax

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount that
will be received.

Government Grants

Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the grant /
subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relating to income is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them
on a systematic basis to the costs, which it is intended to compensate. VAT incentives are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss under Other operating revenues.

Grants realling to property, plant and equipment are included in Non current liabilites as deferred income and
ars credited to Profit and loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of related assets.
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1.20

1.21

1.22

Borrowing Cost

Boirowing costs include interest, other costs incumed in connection with borrowing. General and specific
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production or development of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss In the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the lime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from evenis and whose
existence is only confirmed by one or more doubtful future events or when there is an obligation that is not
recognised as a liability or provision because it is not likely that on outflow of resources will be required

Segment reporting

Segment information is reported as per Indian Accounting Standard 108, The identification of operating segment
is consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the chief operating decision maker

PJ.\,‘»,<.f>.r2"]r;dwm &S

C

o NEWDELHI Bx™,

o, \_FRN 106208W "7 &
2 B

RTERED AcCOMYS




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

2. First ime adoption of Ind AS

Thesa financial stalements of Rellance Cement Company Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017, have been prepared In accordance with INd AS. For the purpose of transitlon 1o Ind
AS, the Company has followe the guldance prescribed in Ind AS 101 - "First Time adoption of Indlan Accounting Standard” with Aprll ¥, 2015 as the transition date and Indlan GAAP as the
previous GAAP.

The transition to Ind AS has resultad in changes In the presentation of tha financlal statement, disclosures in the notes thereto and accounting policies and princigels, The accounting policies sel
out In Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financlal statmant for the year ended March 31st 2047 and the comparative Information. An explanation of how the transitlon from previos GAAP
to Ind AS has effested tha companies balance shest, statement of profit & loss is set out In Note. 2.2, Exemption on first time adoption of ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 have
bean sat out in Mote 2.1

2.1 Exemptions avalled on first time adoption of Ind AS 101

The compsny has elected the option to continue with the carrying value for all its property, plant & equipment as recognised in the financial stalement as at the date of transfilon to Ind AS,
measured as par previous GAAP and used as It the deemed cost as al the date of transition as provided in Ind AS 101 para D7AA. This option is also elected by the company for intangible
assets coverad by Ind AS 38

The company has elected the option to continue with para 48A of previous GAAP & accordingly capilalise exchange gain 10ss arising on fong term forelgn currency menelary item relating 1o
aqulsition of depreaclable capltal asset as permitted under Ind AS 101, Refer Accounting pollcy no. 1.16

2.2 Reconclllation

The following reconclliation provied the effact of transition to Ind AS from IGAAP in accoragance with Ind AS 101
1. Equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016

2. Nel profit for the year ended March 31, 2016

Reconciliation of Equity as previously reported under previous GAAP to Ind AS

Particulars As ai 1 Aprll 2015 As at 31 Margh 2016
Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS Indlan GAAP Adjustmenis Ind AS
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 27,77.41,20,871 B8,38,36,270 27,85,79,56,941 27,86,23,02,670 - 27,86,23,02,670
Capital work-in-progress 2,56,69,54,411 - 2,55,69,564,411 3,14,19,68,398 (24,15 000} 3,13,95,53 398
Other Intangible assets 7,92,73,367 71,33,298 B,64,06,665 8,44,19,457 3,27,57,300 11,71,76,767
FInancial assets - -
Investments ) 2,00,000 - 2,00,000 14,03,02,00,000 - 14,03,02,00,000
Loans 40,289,635 - 40,29,635 61,563,543 - 61,53,543
Others 11,28,00,592 (5,82,788) 14,22,17,804 13,16,95,554 (6,93,018) 13,10,02,536
Other non-cuirent assets 1,91,73,89,049 “ 1,91,73,89,049 73,53,562,002 - 73,53,52,002
Subtotal (A} 32,44 47 67,726 9,03,86,780 32,53,61,54,506 45,99,20,91,624 2,96,49,282 46,02,17,40,906
Current Assets
Inventories 1,04,18,82,445 {21,76,81,492) 82,42,00,953 1,17,34,41,876 - 1,17,34,41,676
Financial assets " -
Investments - - - -
Trade receivables 29,44,93,945 . 20,44.93,945 49,93,23,313 - 49,93,23,313
Cash and cash equivalent 38,54,02,0956 - 38,54,02,095 55,78,45,389 - 55,78,45,3689
Others 3,69,44,148 - 3,59.44,148 2,99,22,315 - 299,22,315
Cther current assets 1,17,66,61,067 - 1,17,65,61,087 1,96,561,52,926 {2,10,91,000) 1,94 ,40,61,828
Subtatal {B) 2,93,42,83,700 (21,76,81,492) 2,71,66,02,208 4,22.56,85,618 {2,10,91,000) 4,20,45,94,618
Total Assets (A+B) 35,37,90,51,426 (12,72,94,712) 35,25,17 56,713 50,21,77 77,242 85,58,282 50,22,63,35,524
EQUITY AND LIIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 1,27,56,65,910 - 1,27,56,85,910 3,12,82,30,000 - 3,12,82,30,000
Other Equity $,94,76,15 5658 8,61,53,110 7,02,87,68,676 18,10,05,01,479 11,90,25,389 18,21,05,26,668
Total equity(C) §,21,82,81,476 8,61,53,110 8,30,44,34,586 21,22,87,31,479 11,90,25,389 21,34,77,56,088
LIABILITIES
Non Gurrent Liabilities
Financlal Liabllities - .
Borrowings 19,29,75,00,875 (22,2733,861) 19,07.47,76,014 22,06,86,09,598 (11,97,85,716) 2194,98,23 882
Provisions 4,57,84,399 92,856,039 5,60,70,438 4,73,35 455 3,04,09,609 . 7.77 45,084
Total Mon Currsnt Liabliitles {P) 19,34,32,94,274 (21,34,47,822) 19,12,98,46,452 22,11,69,45,053 {6,93,78,107) 22,02,75,68,946
Current Liabllities
Financlal Liabilities - -
Borrowings 2,29,28,66,573 - 2,29,28,66,573 2,08,09,22,211 {2,10,91,000) 2,05,98,31,211
Trade Payables 1,97,43,63,271 - 1,97,43,63,274 1,95,42,32,420 - 1954232420
Other financial Llabilities 3,06,35,05,231 - 3,06,35,05,231 2,36,04,33.473 - 2,35,04 33,473
Provislons 60,682,667 - 50,82,657 50,96,142 - 50,656,142
Other Current Liabilltles 48,06,67,933 - 48 08,567,933 45,14,16,464 - 45,14,16,464
Total Gurrent Llabilities (E) 7,81,74,75,675 - 7,81,74,76,6756 6,87,21,00,710 {2,10,91,000) 5,85,10,09,710
Total Equity and Liabllities {C+D+E} 35,37,90,51,425 {12,72,94,712) 36,25,17,56,713 50,21,77,77,242 85,568,282 60,22,63,35,624

Note- The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentallon raquirements for the purposes of this note.
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Reliance Coment Company Private Limited

Reconclllation Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under previous GAAP to Ind AS

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2016

Total iIncome

EXPENSES

Cost of materlals consumed

Purchases of stock in trade

Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-In-trade and work-in-progress
Employee benellits expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Finance costs

Other expenses

Total Expenses (B)

Profiti{loss) before expentlonal items & prior perlod expenses (C) [A-B}
Expectional ltems

Indlan GAAF AdJustments Ind AS
INCOME
Revenue from operations 14,63,23,90,460 1,08,86,48,577 16,62,10,39,037
Gther income 4,24,08,446 4.24,08,446

14,67,47,98,906

1,08,86,48,577

16,56,34,47 403

1,36,25,00,573

12,93,12,870 -
{16,68,48,824) -
786,65,36,664 69,55,698

1,46,25,48,215 3,43.526

2,33,70,7,980 10,37,81,766

10,08,60,83,365

1,96,76,48,577

1,36,25,00,573
12,93,12,870
{16,68,46,824)
77.34,92,382
1,48,34,90,143
2,44,07,89,735
12,07.46,31,942

15,97,83,60,843

2,09,87,20,068

18,07,70,80,802

(1,30,35,51,937)

13,60,87,963

(11,60,81,382)

(13,59,97,963)

{1,41,36,33,319)

Recognition of doferred taxes on falr valuation of financial assets
Profit / Resenves for the perlod as perc Ind AS

Prior perlod expenses (D) -
Proflt/{loss) before tax (E) [C-D] (1,43,96,49,900) 2,59,16,681 {1,41,36,33,319)
Tax Expenses

Current Tax - -

Deferred Tax - -
Loss for the year from continuing operations {1,43,95,49,900) 2,69,16,681 (1,41,36,33,219}
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclasslfied to profil or loss in_ subsequent periods: )
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans - 89,565,608 6©,55,608
Other comprehensive Income for tha year 69,656,698 69,665,808
Total comprehensive income for the year {1,43,85,49,900) 3,28,72,279 {1,40,86,77,621
Nota- The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified lo conform to Ind AS presenlation requirements for the purposes of this note.
Reconclliatlon of Reserves bet Ind AS & previous GAAP

‘ Year Ended 315t | Ag at 31st March
Particulars March 2016 2016 As at 1st April 2016

Proflt | Reserves as per previous GAAP {1,43,95,408,900) 18,10,05,01,479 6,94,26,15,566
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation recognised in other comprehensive Income under Ind AS (net of tax) {69,55,608) {15,565, 266} 54,00,432
Amortisation of Mine closure asset (3,43,928) (10,67,309) -
Unwind finance cosl (10,37,81,756) 11,80,92,698 22,21,61,073
Reversal of provision of mining ¢losure expense 10,00,000 10,00,000
Reversal of depreciation on fixed asset shown as prior pefiod expense 13,59,97,963 - {13,59,97,963)

[1,41,38,33,319)

18,21,79,71,602

7,03,41,69,108

Net Increase./ (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
Cash and cash eguivaients al the end of period

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 69,55,698 15,650,268 {54,00,432)
Total ProfltyReserves for the perlod as per Ind AS {1,40,66,77,621);  18,21,95,26 868 7,02,87,68,678
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year encied 31 March, 2018

Partlcular Previous GAAP Ind AS Effect Asg per Ind AS
Nel cash flowsAused in) from eperaling activities 1,72,88,84,341 {13,64,03,663) 1,69,24,80,778
Net cash flows/{used in) from invesling activities {14,92,34,51,220) 22.18,27.451 (14,70,15,23,769)
Net cash flows/{used in) from financing aclivities 13,36,70,10,173 (8,54,23,888) 13,28,15,86,285

17,24,43,294 - 17,24,45,294
38,54,02,095 - 38,64,02,005
55,78,45,389 - 56,75,45 380

Note- The previous GAAP figures have heen reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Prior period depraciation on PPE and Intangible assets charged in FY 2015-16 |s adjusted as per Ind AS 8 and has been restated at the beginning of the earllest prior period presented le 1st

Apiil 2015, Accordingly retained earning and profit for the year 2015-16 Is adjusted

Capital spares included in inventory under previous GAAP and which meets the definition of 'PPE" as per Ind AS 16 have been idenlified and capitalised as-on 18l Aprll 2015,

Borrowing cost

a) Interest free loan from holding company has been recognised at fair value as per the requirement of Ind AS 108. The

contribution and has been credited to retainad eamings as at 1 Aprll 2045, Accordingly relained earning and profit for the year 2015-16 is adjusted

b) Loan processing charges / transaction cost incurred on borrowings are deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on Initial recognistion as per Ind AS 109. These cost are recognied in
profit or loss over the tenure of the borrowings as Interest expense by applying effective Interest rate method and has been credited to retained earnings as at 1 Aprll 2015. Accordingly retalned

earning and profit for the year 2015-16 is ad]usted

Fair Valuation of financial assel

Under previous GAAP Interest free securily deposit were recoprded at thelr iransaction value. As per Ind AS, all financial asset a
between fair value and carrying value as per IGAAP has been recognised as In retalned eaming as at 1st April 2015, Accordingly

March, 2016

Decommissioning Liablity
Decommissioning liabllities related to mines at the transilion dale to Ind AS has been recognised

Excise Duty

Excise duty in previous GAAP shown as deduction from Revenue. Under Ind AS the revenue is inclusive of excise duly and shown as expense.

QOther Equity

Adjustment to retalned earning and other comprehensive income has been made in accordance with Ind AS, for the above line ltem

e
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diffrence betweenthe loan amount and falr vaiue is treated as an equity

re required to. he recognised at fair value, accordingiy difference
impact on the profit and loss and equity for the year ended 31st
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

3B. Capital work in Progress

Sub total (A)

Particulats March 31, 2017 | WNarch 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
A. Assets under construction 69,77,49,581 1,03,60,73,936 79,10,79,6814
B. Expenditure incurred on Project Development Pending
Capitalisation / allocation* 2,77,91,40,081 2,10,58,94 462 1,76,58,74,797
C. Adjustments (17,68,488) {24,15,000}

3,47,51,22,074

3,13,95,53,398

2,55,69,54,411

* Expenditure incurred on Project Development Pending Gapitalisation / allocation”

Amount in Rs

Salaries, wages Licences, Other
Particulars y Finance costs* Depreciation | Clearances, Taxes Total

and honus etc Expenses
April 1, 2015 1,29,15,95,816 97,85,048 73,91,413 4,95,71,039 40,75,31,481 1,76,58,74,797
Incurred during the year 10,84,14,810 14,54,98,599 1,04,63,627 1,56,25,390 6,00,17,239 34,00,19,665
Capitalised/Adjusted during the year - - - - - -
March 31, 2016 1,40,00,10,626 15,52,83,647 1,78,55,040 6,51,96,42¢ 46,75,48,720 2,10,58,94,462
Incurved during the year 6,19,47.319 21,43,61,942 55,009,087 54,53,05,532 74,38,974 83,45,62,854
Capitalised/Adjusted during the year 7,26,82,731 3,06,98,308 35,683,708 25,44,902 5,18,06,688 16,13,16,335
March 31, 2017 1,38,92,75,214 33,89,47,281 1,97,80,419 §0,79,57,059 42,31,81,008 | 2,77,01.40,981

*The borrowing cost on specific borrowings has been capitalised at the rate applicable for respective borrowings.

3C. Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Mining Right Mining Closure Total
software Asset
Gross Block
‘ As at April 1, 2015 76,79,941 7,15,93,426 - 7,92.73,367
; Ind AS 8 Impact (Priar Period Adjusiment) (1,53,376) 23,08,117 - 21,52,741
: impact On Ind AS (Transltion) - - 92,86,038 92,56,038
; Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016 78,33,317 6,92,87,309 92,86,039 8,64,06,665
: Additions 1,56,00,732 - 2,38,15,188 3,94,15,920
; Disposal - - - -
} As at March 31, 2016 2,34,34,049 6,92,87,309 3,31,01,227 12,58,22,585
i Additions 1,18,82,032 - - 1,18,62,032
! Disposal - - - -
: As at March 31, 2017 3,52,96,081 8,92,87,309 3,31,01,227 13,76,84,617
! Accumulated Depreciation
E As at April 1, 2015 - - . -
Charge for the year 68,70,032 14,31,869 3,43,927 86,45,828
Disposal . - - -
As af March 21, 2018 $8,70,032 14,31,869 3,43,927 $6,45,828
Charge for the year 55,13,876 14,31,869 13,94,236 83,356,081
Disposal - - - -
As at March 31, 2017 1,23,83,908 28,63,738 17,38,163 1,69,85,.809
Net carrying amount
As at April 1, 2015 78,33,317 5,92,87,309 92,86,039 B,64,06,665
As at March 31, 2016 1,65,64,017 §,78,55,440 3,27,57,300 11,71,78,757
As at March 31, 2017 2,28,12,173 8,64,23 571 3,13,63,064 12,06,98,808
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
Amount in Rs.

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

4. Investments
(carried at cost)

Unquoted

Investment in equity instrument of subsidiary

Nil (31 March 2015: 1,403,020,000,1 April 2015 20,000)

unquoted equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in - 14,03,02,00,000 2,00,000
Reliance Concrete Private Limited

- 14,03,02,00,000 2,00,000

As a condition precedent to the share purchase agreement antered between Birla Corporation limited, Reliance Infrastructure Limited and
Reliance Cement Company Private Limited ('the Company’), Birla Corporation Limited has not taken over the investmant made by the
Company in its wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Reliance Goncrete Private Limited. As the Company would not be receiving any consigeration
towards the said investments, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 19, 2016 have approved a write off of investment in the
equity shares of Reliance Concrete Private Limited amounting to Rs. 14,03,02,00,000.

The Company has reduced the Securities Premium Account by Rs. 14,03,02,00,000 to utilize for wiriting off the Deficit in the Profit and Loss
Account balance by the said amount pursuant to the order dated April 22, 2016 received from Hon'ble Bombay High Court for reduction in
share capital (securities premium account). Accordingly, the reserve balances have been adjusted during the year.

5, Loans
(At amortized cost)

(Secured, considered good}

Housing loans to employee against hypothecation of the property 22,95,837 30,45,740 34,02,172

{Unsecured, considered good)

Loans to employeas 6,80,969 31,07,803 6,27.463
29,76,806 61,53,543 40,29,635

6. Other Financial Assefs
(At amortized cost)

Non-Current Bank Balances 2,72,28,396 2,14,38,250 1,13,23,250
Security deposits 15,93,80,630 10,95,64,286 10,08,94,554
18,66,09,026 13,10,02,536 11,22,17,804

7. Other Non-current Assets
( Unsecured, Considered Good )

Capital advances 10,09,74,664 58,65,32,333 1,86,65,31,714
Advance to employees 448,593 448,275 2,168,723
VAT incentive receivables 25,23,20,043 12,25,27,090 3,73,13,080
Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities 1,04,07,426 1,02,87,132 62,60,836
Advance income tax {Net of Provision) 2,34,10,351 1,65,69,172 70,66,686

38,75,61,077 73,63,62,002 1,81,73,89,049
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Rellance Cement Company Private Limited

B. Inventories

Stores and spares
Packing materials
Raw materials
Waork-in-progress
Finished goods
Traded goods
Fuel

9. Investments
(Classified at Fair Value through Prefit and Loss{FVTPL)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Quoted - HDFC Liguid Fund - Divect Plan - Growth Option -
6234.550 Units (31 March 16: Nil, 1 April: Nil)

10. Trade Receivables

From related parties
Unsecurad, considered good

From Others

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Allowance for doubtful debts

il
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Amount in Rs,

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
2017 20186 2015
42,06,63,8886 33,27,69,219 29,65,65,030
4.65,50,101 2,32,25,816 2,18,38,655
15,690,904 622 13,98,75,655 8,16,24 345
40,38,02,451 22.88,83,105 16,78,72,433
26,56,35,552 26,09,03,626 16,24,98,681
- 1,85,598 17,64,301
10,14,97,005 17,85,98,547 9,20,46,608
1,39,41,43,617 1,17,34,41,876 82,42,00,953
2,00,06,161 - -
2,00,06,161 - .
0,84,13,995 6,05,51,290 747,777,855
21,03,71,778 19,01,46,045 9,57,85,649
26,98,11,144 23,96,25,978 12,39,30,441
4,75,38,518 - -
(4,75,38,518) - .
57,85,96,917 49,93,23,313 29,44,93,945




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Amount in Rs,

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
11. Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash on hand 4,98,823 2,49,812 4,36,201
Cheques on hand 5,45,000 - -
Balances with banks:
- On current / cash credit accounts 10,56,38,902 1,78,79,207 12,02,46,706
- Deposits 2,72,28,398 56,11,54,620 27,60,42,438

Less : Shown under other non current financial assest

{2,72,28,396)

(2,14,38,250)

(1,13,23,250}

10,66,82,725 55,78,45,389 38,54,02,098
Earmarked balances held as margin monegy 2,72,28,396 2,14,38,250 2,24,27.852
Deposits with original maturity with more than 12 months maturity 2,72,28,396 2,14,38,250 1,13,23,250

Cash & cash equivalent includes deposit maintained by the company with banks, which can be withdrawn by company at any peint of time

without prior notice or penalty on the principal

12. Other Financial Assets
(At amortized cost)

Security deposit 7,53,600 1,01,78,600 1,26,53,600
Other Income receivable - - 16,41,364
Interest acerued but not due on bank deposit 22,39,322 1,97,43,715 2,16,49,184
Interest Rate Swap (IRS) Receivable 10,34,512 - -
40,27,434 2,99,22 315 3,60,44,148
13. Other Current Assets
( Unsecured, Considerad Good )
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 84,34,526 66,83,423 62,68,410
Prepaid expenses 1,65,03,657 2,00,33,159 1,69,35,529
Advance to vendors 22,99,38,488 15,70,40,316 17,68,05,661
Advance to employees 18,06,100 32,75,338 16,897,946
VAT Incentive receivable® 2,49,21,68,401 1,54,87,00,409 11,21,14,868
Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities 17,36,71,012 20,83,29,280 B86,27,38,653
2,92,26,22.184 1,94,40,61,925 1,17,65,61,067

* The Company's manufacturing plants at Maihar (Madhya Pradesh) and Kundanganj (Uttar Pradesh) are eligile for government grant in
the form of reimbursement of 75% in case of Madhya Pradesh and 80% in case of Utlar Pradesh of the VAT / CST paid to respective
state’s treasury pursuant to Industrial Promotion Policy, 2014 (MP Mega Froject Policy) and Infrastructure and Industrial Investment Policy,
2012 (UP Mega Project Policy), respectively.
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
Amount in Rs,

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

14. Equity Share Capital

Authorised :

400,000,000 (31 March 2016 400,000,000,1 April 2015:

200,000,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each 4,00,00,00,000 4,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
4,00,00,00,000 4,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up

312,823,000 (31 March 2016 312,823,000, 1 April 2015:

127,568,581) equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each 3,12,82,30,000 3,12,82,30,000 1,27,58,65,910
3,12,82,30,000 3,12,82,30,000 1,27,56,65,910

{a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

iy The Company's equity shares have a par value of Rs. 10/- each. 'Halder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equily shares will be entilled to recelve assets of the company, if any remaining
after distribution of all preferantial accounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{(h) Reconclliation of number of shares outstanding Numbers Numbers Numbers

At the beginning of the year 31,28,23,000 12,75,66,591 12,75,66,591
- Issued during the year - 18,52,58,409 -
QOutstanding at the end of the year 31,28,23,000 31,28,23,000 12,75,66,591
c) Shares held by Holding Company

Birla Corporation Limited 31,28,23,000 - -

% holding 100.00% - -
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 31,28,23,000 12,75,66,591
% holding 100.00% 100.00%
d) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Birla Corporation Limited 31,28,23,000 - -

% holding 100.00% - -
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 31,28,23,000 12,75,66,591
% holding 100.00% 100.00%

15. Long Term Borrowings

At Amortised Cost

Secured

Loan from Banks
Rupee term loans 16,95,66,62,473 18,61,50,47 428 15,85,02,55,632
Foreign currency term loans 4,72,84,15978 2,25,74,02,499 2.41,87,50,000

Unsecured

L.can from Banks
Foreign currency term loans 1,35,46,90,078 1,58,17.589,949 1,67,86,27,973

Other Loans

From related party -

10% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares® 1,00,00,00,000

* Subscribed by Birla Corportation Limited {(Holding Company)

- 94,22,66,139

24,03,97,68,529 22,4542 09,876 20,89,68,90,744
Less : Current Maturites of Long Termn Borrowings at the
year end (Disclosed under note no 19)

Secured
Loan from Banks
Rupee term loans 38,81,80,848 - 1,34,63,23,819
Foreign currency term loans 31,96,17,856 30,56,66,000 28,92,85.714
Unsecured
t.oan from Banks
Foreign currency term loans 19,35,27,154 19,77,19,994 18,65,14,197
90,23,25,858 50,43,85,994 1,82,41,23,730
3 BNKAR Al YAR 23,13,74,42 671 21,94,95,23,882 19,07,47,76,014

d-
*
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited Amount in Rs.

Rupee term loans from banks (Secured)

Term loan of Rs 1706,72,33,805 (includes processing fees of Rs 11,05,71,432 netted of above) (rale of interest @ Base rate plus 110 bps
p.a) (including current maturities of Rs 38,91,80,848) from Bank (s) is secured by way of first charge on all present and future movable and
immovable assels pertaining io projects at Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh and Coal mines located at Sial
Ghogri, Madhya Pradesh, ranking pari passu with all lender bank {s) under consortium and second charge on entire current assets of the
Maihar and Kundanganj projects ranking pan passu with all lender bank (s} under consortium. Further the term loan is also secured by
Corporate Guarantee of the holding Company viz., Birla Corporation Limited upto Rs 200,00,00,000. The loan is repayable in 48 unequal
quarterly installment starting from June 2017 and ending on December 2028 in the following manner.

Particulars Installment Total
8 installments from June 2017 to March 2019 9,72,95,212 77,83,61,698
8 installments from June 2019 to March 2021 19,45,90,424 1,65,67,23,392
4 instaliments from June 2021 to March 2022 31,13,44,678 1,24,63,78,712
4 instaliments from June 2022 to March 2023 38,91,80,849 1,55,67,23,394
8 instalments of each from June 2023 to March 2025 42 80,98,932 3,42,47,91,456
15 instaliments from June 2025 to December 2028 46,70,17,017 7,00,52,55,255
1 installment on December 2028 1,50,00,00,000 1,60,00,00,000

17,06,72,33,005

Foreign Currency Loans from banks {Secured)

External Commercial Borrowing from 1DBI Bank Ltd, Dubai of Rs 111,17,14,288 {rate of interest BM LIBOR pius 500 bps p.a) (including
current maturilies of Rs 22.23 42,857} is sacured by way of first charge on all present and future movable and immovable assets pertaining
to projects at Maihar and Gondavali in Madhya Pradesh, Kundanganj in uttar Pradesh, ranking pari passu with other lender banks (s) and
second charge on entire current assats of the Maihar and Kundanganj project ranking pari passu with other lender banks (s). The loan is
repayable in remaining 20 equal quarterly installments (June, 2017 to March, 2022) of Rs 55,585,714 each.

Foreign Currency Term Loan from Axis Bank Lid of Rs 287,42,27,245 {includes processing fees of Rs 5,51,80,554 netted off above) (rate
of interest 1M LIBOR plus 280 bps p.a) (fully hedged). This loan will be converted into Rupee Term Loan of Rs 290,00,00,000 on 21st
August 2017 is secured by way of subservient charge on all present and future movable and immovable assets of the Company except
assets relating to Maihar, Madnhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh projects. Further the loan in secured by Corperate Guarantee
of the Holding Gompany viz., Birla Corporation Limited. The loan is repayable in 36 unequal quarterly installmants starting from November,
2019 and ending on August, 2028 in the following manner:

Particulars Installment Total

2 instaliment from November 2019 to February 2020 1,01,50,000 2,03,00,000
2 installmant of from May 2020 to August 2020 2,03,00,000 406,030,000
2 installment from November 2020 to February 2021 4,06,00,000 8,12,00,000
4 installment from May 2021 to February 2022 6,09,00,000 24,36,00,000
B installiment from May 2022 to August 2023 8,12,00,000 48,72,00,000
2 installment fram Nov 2023 to August 2024 10,00,50,000 20,01,00,000
18 installment from May 2024 to August 2028 10,15,00,000 1,82,70,00,000

2,90,00,00,000

External Commercial Borrowings from SBI (Mauritis) Limited of Rs 79,76,55,000 {rate of interest 6M LIBOR plus 452 bps p.a) {including
current maturities of Rs 9,72,75,000) is secured by way of of first charge on all present and future movable and immovable assets
pertaining to projects at Maihar and Gondavali in Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj in Uttar Pradesh ranking pari passu with cther lender
bank {s) and second charge on entire current assets of the Maihar and Kundanganj projects ranking pari passu with other lender banks
(s). The lean is repayable In remaining 15 quarterly unequal instaliments.

Particulars Installment Total

4 instaliments from June 2017 to March 2018 2,43,18,750 9,72,75,000
2 instaliments from June 2018 to September 2018 3,16,14,375 6,32,28,750
2 installments from December 2018 to March 2019 3,89,10,000 7,78,20,000
2 instaliment of from June 2019 to September 2018 6,56,80,625 13,13,21,250
2 instaliment of from December 2019 to March 2020 3,26,83,750 16,53,67,500
3 instaliments from June 2020 to December 2020 8,75,47 500 26,26,42,500

79,76,55,000

Foreign Currency Loans from banks (Unsecured)

External Commercial borrowing from Deuische Bank, Germany of Rs 135,46,90,078 {rate of interest 6M LIBOR plus 175 bps p.a)
fincluding current maturities of Rs 19,35,27,154) is secured by way of Corperate Guarantee of the Holding Company viz., Blr'a Corporation
Limited. The loan is repayable in remaining 14 semi-annual equal installments of Rs 9,67,63,577 each.

10% cumulative Preference Share {unsecured)

1,00,00,000 Preference shares of Rs. 100 each are held by lhe holding company viz., Birla Corporation Limited carries voting rights as
prescrived under section 47 (2) of the Companies Act 2013, . The preference will be redeemed at par after 5 years ie. Deacember 2021.
The non convertable preference share carry preference share right vis-a-vis equlty shares of the company with respect to payment of
divident and repayment of capital in the event of winding up.

All current & non current assels are pledge as security with bank (s). The carrying value are disclosed under respective heads
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Amount in Rs.

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
2017 2018 2015
18. Provisions
Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity 5,654,364 - 40,015
Compensated absences 4,54,88,781 4,39,20,455 4,57,44,384
Others
Provision for mine closure expenses 3,66,38,333 3,38,24 609 92,86,039
8,26,81,478 7,77,45,064 5,50,70,438
Movement of Provision for mine closurg expenses
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,38,24,609 92,86,039 -
Additions 28,13,724 2,45,38,570 92,86,030
Amount paid - - -
Balance at the end of the year 3,66,38,333 3,38,24,609 92,886,038

Provision for mine closure expenses represents estimates made towards the expected expenditure for restoring the mining area and other
obligatory expenses as per the approved mine closure plan. The timing of the outflow with regard to the said matter would be in a phased
manner based on the progress of excavation of minerals and consequential restoration cost.

17. Borrowings

Secured e e e e e e e o e e e e e e e .

Waorking capital loans repayable oh demand from banks* - 37,75,44,036 15,83,46,338
Buyers credit from banks in foreign cumency® - 20,33,78,175 2,13,45,20,237
Unsecured

Commercial papers - 1,47,89,09,000 -

- 2,05,98,21,211 2,29,28,66,573

* Secured by way of first charge on all present and future current assets of the projects situated at Maihar in Madhya Pradesh and
Kundanganj in Uttar Pradesh and second charge on all the present and future immovable and movables fixed assets of the projects,
situated at Maihar in Madhya Pradesh & Kundanganj in Utiar Pradesh.
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eliance Cement Company Private Limited

e

18. Trade payables

Trade payables
Total Quistanding due to micro, small and medium enterprises

As at 31 March

Amount in Rs.
As at 31 March

2017

1,89,52,81,802
7,42,580

2016

1,95,11,23,1657
31,090,263

As at 1 April
2015

4,07,39,63,141
4,00,130

1,89,60,34,382

1,95,42,32,420

1,97,43,63,271

Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 to the extent of confirmation received

The principal amount and the interesl due thereon (to be
shown separalely) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of sach accounting year.

Principal

Interest

The amount of interest pald by the buyer in terms of section
16, of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made fo
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounling year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appainted day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

19, Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term bomowings (refer note no. 15)
Interest accrued but not due on long -term borrowings
interest accrued but not due on Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Share Capital

Employee Benefits Payable

Security Deposits from customers

Security Deposits - Others

Reltention money payable

Payable for capital expenditure

Forward Contract Payable

Others Payable

20. Provisions

Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated absenses
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742,680 31,09,263 4,00,130
83,040 87,299 -
2,563,460 14,74,086 -
15,41,386 - -
90,23,25,858 50,43,85,804 1,82,41,23,730
4,51,75,473 2,55,13,686 2,18,58,670
2,76,71,233 - -
10,61,49,298 11,17,86,623 16,04,88,932
84,35,68,008 74,56,20,544 60,80,94,947
3,50,10,805 3,50,38,500 3,96,13,139
12,567,82,004 12,25,68,036 11,15,60,544
23,41,50,744 13,03,32,783 6,47,52,974
2,89,26,724 - .
60,33,76,109 70,51,80,307 24,20,02,295
2,95,21,36,346 2,38,04,33 473 3,08,35,05,234
63,89,548 50,96,142 60,82,667
63,89,548 60,82,667

50,96,142




Refiance Cement Company Private Limited

21, Other Current Liabilities

Advance from Customers
Statutory dues payable

22, Revenue from Operations

Finished goods
Cement
Clinker

Traded goods
Cement

Sale of Service

Other Operating Revenue-
Scrap Sales
Incentives and subsidies

23. Other Income

Interest income
from Fixed Deposits
Other Interest
Insurance Claim Received
Excess Liabilities and Unclaimed Balances written back
Foreign exchange gain (net}
Fair Value of Investment
Capital grant
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund (FVTPL)
Miscellaneous Income

24. Cost of Materials Consumed

Raw materials and component consumed !
Stock at the beginning

Add: Purchases during the year

Less : Closing Siock

Details of Cost of Material Consumed
Limestone

Clinker

Gypsum

Flyash

Others

e
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Amount in Rs.

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015
34,48,38,273 32,96,71,875 31,56,57,898
21,36,06,521 12,17,44, 589 16,50,00,035
55,84,42,794 45.14,16,464 48,06,57,933
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2017 March 2016

16,39,79,03,494

14,32,32,23,814

55,97,81,687 §7,35,91,648
2,30,908 15,70,08,677
16,25,79,15,989 15,05,38,24,939
2,69,06,746 3,22,89,097
1,62,26,897 1,31,25,460

1,44,22,27 897

1,52,17,99,541

18,44,32,77,529

16,62,10,39,037

1,02,45,540 2,97,31,712
1,00,26,106 78,10,507
37,24,404 34,50,370
25,15,61,766 -
4,21,20,286 -
6,161 -
1,00,00,000 -
25,58,146 -
16,31,219 14,15,867
33,18,73,628 4,24,08,446
13,08,76,855 8,16,24 345
1,48,84,80,428 1,42,07,562,083
15,59,94,622 13,98,75,865

1,47,23,61,661

1,36,25,00,673

16,35,29,928

6,08,61,298
39,62,01,079
56,08,35,862
29,19,33,494

9,03,45,006
3,36,70,381
47,82,92,057
54,25,50,386
21,96,42,743

1,47,23,61,661

1,36,25,00,573
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

25, Purchases of traded goods

Purchases of traded goods - Gement

26, Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-
trade and work-in-progress

Stock at the end of the year
Finished goods

Traded goods

Work in Progress

Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods

Traded goods

Work In Progress

27. Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

Pefined Contribution Plan:

Amount in Rs.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2017 March 2018
1,85,508 12,93,12,870
1,856,598 12,93,12,870
26,56,35,552 26,99,03,536
- 1,86,598
40,38,02,451 22,88,83,105
86,94,38,003 49,89,72,239
26,99,03,536 16,24,98,681
1,85,598 17,564,301
22,88,83,106 16,78,72 433
49,89,72,239 33,21,25,415
{17,04,65,764) (16,68,46,824)
69,35,20,456 G7,91,46,834
2,81,14,507 3,15,17,366
1,27,75,618 89,00,803
1,62,22,804 1,01,57,840
3,08,76,582 437,690,518
78,05,09,967 77,34,92,362

The Company has recognized the following amount in the statement of profit and loss / Capital work in

progress / Intangible assets for the year
Provident Fund

Superannuation Fund

Pension Fund

Gratuity

Change in henefit obligations
Benefit obligation at the begining
service cost

interest expense

Actuarial (gains) / losses

Benefits paid

Benefit obkligation at the end

Change in Plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning

interest income

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets
Employers Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end

Funded status
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1,75,59,994 2,06,05,776
11,31,752 16,15,770
95,93,210 1,11,88,669
4,29,56,228 4,02,61,458
1,38,75,970 1,47,37,108
32,20,868 30,35,485
(56,55,185) (69,85,080)
{49,22,067) (80,81,744)
4,94,76,814 4,29,56,228
4,61,95,010 4,02,21,443
46,68,493 32,28,594
8,14,881 {40,382)
31,665,133 1,08,67,009
(49,22,067) (80,81,744)
4,89,21,450 4,61,95,010
5,54,364 (32,38,762)




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Expenses recognlsed in statement of profit and loss
service cost
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset

Remesurement recognised in OCI
Actuarial (gains) / losses
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Acturial assumptions

Mortality - Indian assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate
Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

Withdrawal rate

Sensitivity analysis as on 31st March 2017

Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 bps
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 bps

Sensitivity analysis as on 31st March 2016

Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 bps
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 bps

Amount in Rs.

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2017 March 2016
1,38,75,970 1,47,37,108
(4,47,625) (1,93,108)
1,34,28,345 1,45,44,000
(56,55,185) {69,96,080)
8,14,881 (40,382)
(64,70,066) (69,55,698)
7.00% 7.80%
7.50% 7.50%
4.00% 4.00%
Discount rate Salary Escalation rate
470,63,535 5,20,64,921
5,20,90,117 470,823,535
Discount rate Salary Escalation rate
4,08,97,220 4.51,79.134
4,51,83,424 4,08,82,418

The Company expects to conribute Rs. 50,00,000 to the Gratuity fund during FY 2017-18

At 31st March 2017, the weighted average duraficn of the defined benefit obligation

of benefits payment i.e., the maturity analysis of the benefit payments is as follows:

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations

Within 1 year

1-2 year

2-3 year

3-4 year

4-5 year

56 year

6-7 year

7-8 year

8-9 year

9 year and above

28. Finance Costs

Interest on Term Loans

Interest on Working capital Loans

On Deposits and Others

Other borrowing costs

Interest on dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Prefarence Shares Dividend Expenses

Unwinding finance cost

29. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Less: Transfer to

Capital work-in-progress
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Amount
49,118,727
27,00,887
31,31,591
41,67,681
28,17,833
290,68,849
41,96,402
33,76,149
54,19,708

8,53,33,031

2,10,14,11,281
3,32,49,106
7,79,45,862
3,03,72,191
63,040
3,33,04,459
1,27,66,279

was 10,15 years. The distribution of the timing

2,12,23,81,016
3,11,49,352
8,65,14,924
3,64,31,302
16,41,385

16,27,81,757

2,29,81,12,218

2,44,07,99,736

1,49,56,38,452
83,39,081

55,09,087

1,46,50,07,940
86,45,828

1,04,63,627

1,49,84,69,346

1,46,31,90,143




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

30. Other Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials Consumed

Power & Fuel

Excise duty

Repairs to buildings

Repairs to machinery

Royalty & Cess

Freight & Material Handling on nter Unit Transfer
increase/{Decrease) in Excise Duly & Cess on Finished Goods
Other Manufacturing Expenses

Selling and Administration Expenses
Discount, selling and distribution expenses
Freight and forwarding expenses
Insurance
Rent
Repairs to Other Assets
Rates & Taxes
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Payments to auditors
Audit fees
Certification
Reimbursement of expenses
Loss on salefdiscard of Fixed Assets & CWIP (Net)
Net loss on foreign currency translations
Expenses for increase in authorised share capital and issue of shares
Professional fees
Bank Charges
Provision for doubtful debts
Miscellangous expenses

31. Eaming per Share

Amount in Rs,

Year ended 31
March 2017

1,02,48,32,214
3,93,14,51,627
2,18,34,60,769

Year ended 31
March 2016

93,34,17,84C
4,13,5210,724
1,08,86,48,577

2,58,73,938 2,04,31,492
10,14,89,407 8,84,08,132
37,75,18,273 28,87,99,238
84,63,58,508 96,29,56,917
37,83,525 (1,18,27,636)
11,31,04,477 10,02,04,123
36,38,27,083 37,54,03,750
2,69,63,53,072 2.35,13,72,856
2,05,06,271 2,33,39,115
7,01,53,456 7,62,59,305
19,60,78,918 19,16,57,738
5,06,69,096 2,33,84,500
9,62,40,031 5,23,24,109
7,32,500 7,32,500
7,00,000 65,753
15,61,75,328 9,560,907
- 14,15,72,857

- 1,00,69,000
1,86,09,114 2,11,53,928
2,60,22,355 1,84,57,867

4,75,38,518

25,48,76,552 27,17,28,261
12,60,73,45,932 12,07,46,31,942

The computation of basic / diluted earning/ { loss} per share is set out below

Net Profit / {Loss) after current and deferred tax

No of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

No of Shares outstanding at the end of the period

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
EPS (Rs.) - Basic and Diluted

32. Commitments and Contingencies

a. Contingent Liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

b. Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for {nel of advances)

In respect of the matter in note na. 32, future cash outflows are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various

(13,74,15,67,801)

31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000

31,28,23,000
(43.93)

12,78,79,366

4.11,70,674

(1,41,36,33,319)
12,75,66,591
31,28,23,000
16,01,78,333

(8.83)

17 69,25,064

14,89,72,001

As at 1 April
2015

4,50,63,00,000

forums / authorities. Furthermore, there is no possibilities of any reimbursements to be made to the company fram any third party .
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Amount in Rs.

Year ended 31
March 2017

33. Related Party disclosures as per Ind AS 24

Reliance Infrastructure Limited_(Holding company uptc 21 .08.2016)

Sale of products 51,42,500
Sub-ordinate debt received 3,00,00,00,000
Sub-ordinate debt repaid 1,60,00,00,000
Share application money recelved

Purchase of raw materials 2,47 65,738
Reimbursement of expenses 1,82,51,406
Balances outstanding

Trade receivables

Loans and advances

Corporate guarantes issued on behalf of the company

Sub-ordinate debt

Trade Payable

Birla Corporation Limited {Holding gompany w.e.f 22.08.2016)

Purchase of goods and services 5,57,74,354
Sale of goods and services 20,34,13,995
Reimbursement of expenses paid 51,74,492
l.oan taken 90,00,00,000
Repayment of Loan taken 90,00,00,000
Preference shares issued 1,00,00,00,000
Interest expense 1,23,87,670
Provision for Dividend on Preference shares (Expense) 2,76,71,233
Balances outstanding

Trade receivables 9,84,13,995
Trade payable 5,45,68,783
Provision for Dividend on Preference shares payable 2,76,71,233
Corporate Guarantee given to Banks 6,25,46,90,078

Reliance Concrete Private Limited {Subsidiary upto 21.08.2016)
Non-current investments written off

Share application meney paid

Balances outstanding

Non-current investments outstanding

14,03,02,00,000

Anil Ambani

Year ended 31
March 2016

53,206,760
28,50,00,000
1,38,00,00,000
14,44,99,98,902
6,09,82,493
2,52,90,485

59,7¢.441
2,52 34¢
5,06,43,29,823

14,03,00,00,000

14,03,02,00,000

(Promoters having significant influenses on the holding company directly or indirectly upto 24.08.2016)

Key Managerial Persons (KMP)

Remuneration paid to KMP

Mr Atul Desai (Director upto 27.08.2016)

Mr. Bachh Raj Nahar (Managing Director w.e.f, 22.09.2016)

1,04,64,743

Utility Infrastructure and Works Private Limited
(Fellow subsidiary uptg 21.08.2016)

Advances given

Balances outstanding

Trade recelvable

Reliance Ornatus Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited
(Enterprise over which promoter has significant influence upto 21.08.2016)
Purchase of raw material

Sale of services

Balances outstanding

Trade receivables

Trade Payable

5,44,25,823
1,62,03,936

Vidrabha Industries Private Limited

{Enterprise over which promoter has significant influence upto 21.08.2016)

Sale of products 2,22, 246
Trade Receivable
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2,02,80,682

15,00,000

1,76,00,832

9,48,62,257
3,69,71,017

3,69,71,017
3,65,52,691

3,20,440
74,296

As at 1 April
2015

5,88,77,023
12,34,839
5,06,43,20,823
1,00,50,00,000
6,31,14,520

2,00,00C

1,61,00,832




Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

Amount in Rs.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31 As at 1 April
March 2017 March 2016 2015

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
{Enterprise over which promoter has significant influence upto 21.08.2018)

Insurance premium paid 87,741 2,25,12,885 -
Insurance claim received 34,50,370 -
Balances outstanding

Loans and advances 7.804 26,47,086

Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Limited
{Enterprise over which promoter has significant influence upto 21.08.2016)

Rent paid 38,75,734 1,15,04,985 -
Balances outstanding

Loans and advances - 80,000 -
Trade payable - 3,03,92,164

Rosa Power Supply Company Limited
(Enterprise gver which promoter has significant influence upto 21.08.2018)

Sale of products 1,31,26,581 99,790,174 ' -
Reimbursement of expenses paid 57,88,540 -
Trade Recelvable 78,65,087 -

Sasan Power Limited
(Enterprise over which promoter has significant influence upio 21.08.2016)

Sale of products 1,60,44,952 6,33,88,341 -
Amount payable at year end 71,840 - -
Trade Receivable 3,79,08,571 .

34. Operating Segment as per Ind AS 108

The managing director of the company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by ind AS.108 -
Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by industry classes. Accordingly, segment information has been presented. In the opinion of the management,
there is only ane segment -"Cement" which includes products of similar nature, risks and returns. So disclosure of primary segment and
geographical segment are not applicable.

35, Taxation
The significant component and classification of deferred tax assets and liabilities on account of timing differences are:

Deferred tax asset/{liability) comprises of:
A.Deferred tax liabilities on account of -

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (2,29,45,75,258) (1,86,656,90,045) (1,31,37,55,142}
Financial Liabilities / Assets at amortized cost (3,41,68,476) (3,70,13,786) (2,16,30,000)
B.Deferred tax assets on account of -

Trade Receivables 1,46,89,402 - -
Mine Closure Liability 1.13,21,245 1,04,51,804 28,569,385
items Allowable when paid 6,30,69,785 6,60,14,517 15,84,79,643
Carried forward Losses. 3,56,42,03,965 2,68,65,83,667 1,52,83,73,085
Deferred tax asset/(liability) (net} 1,32,45,40,663 75,83,26,157 35,40,37,872

The company has significant carried forward losses. The company has not generated sufficient taxable income to offset the carried
forward losses. Considering the above facts, the management is not able to estimate the likely timing and the leval of future taxable profit
that will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Therefore, the management has determined that it cannot recognise the
deferred tax assets on the the tax losses carried forward as on the reporting date. As a matter of prudence the deferred tax assets on
unused tax losses have been recognised only to the extent of the deferred tax liability. If the company was able ‘o recognise all
unrecognised deferred tax assets, the loss for the year would have decreased by Rs. 1,32,45,40,663 and consequent increase in equity.

Since the Company has incurred loss during the year 2018-17 and previous year 2015-16 and no tax Is payable for these years as per
provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, the calculation of effeciive tax rate is not relevant and hence, not given.
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Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

36. Falr value of Financial Assets and Flnanclal Llabilitles (Current & Non Current)

As at 315t March 2017 , 31st March 2016 and 1st April 2015

Amcunt in Rs.

315t March 2017 31st Margh 2016 1st Apri 2015
Partlculars Amortized Amortized Amoriized
EVIEL Cost FVTEL Cost FVIEL Cosl
Financlal Assets
Investment
- Mulual Funds 2,00,08,161
Trade Recelvablos 57,85,96,917 49.93,23,313 29,44,93,948
Loans Given 29,76,806 61,53,542 40,29,635
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,66,82,725 55,78,45,360 38,54,02,095
Other Receivables 10,34,512 18.96,01,048 16,09,24,861 14,81,61,952
Total Financial Assets 21040673 97,78,68,306 - 1,22,42,47,096 - 83,2087 627

Financiai Liabillties
Borrowings 23,13,74,42 671 24,00,96,55,003 21,38,79,42,587
Tradae Payables 1,89,60,34,382 1,954232 420 1,97,43,63,271
QOther FInangial Liabiities 2,89,26,724 2,62,32,00,622 2,38,04,33 473 3,08,35,05,231

Total Financial Liabllities 2,80,26,724 | 27,95,66,86,675 - 28,34,43,20,086 - 26,40,55,11,089

Falr Values

The follow|nd is the comparison by class of the carrying amouynts and falr value of the Company's financlal instrurments:

Particulars Fair Value 31st March 2017 31st March 2016 Asl Apil 2015
— Helrarchy | Carrying Amoun | FairValue | CarvingAmount | Feirvaie | CanvingAmount | Falrvelie |
Financial Assels
Mutual Fund Level 1 2,00,06,161 2,00,06,161
Security Deposits Level 3 15,93,80,630 15,88,60,630 10,65,64,286 10,05,64,268 10,08,94,564 10,08,94,554
Derivative Financial Asset Level 2 10,34 612 10,34,612 - - - -
Total Financial Assets 18,04,21,303 18,04,21,303 10,95,64,286 10,95,64,286 10,08,84 564 10,08,84,564

Financial Liabilitles
Rupae Term Loan Level 3 16,95,66,62473 | 16,95,66,62,473 18,61,50,47,428 18,61,50,47,428 | 15859255632 | 15,85,92,55,632
Foreign Cumrency Term Loan Level 3 6,08,31,06,056 6,08,31,08,058 3,83,91.62,448 3,83,91,62,448 4007377973 4,09,73,77,972
Sub ordinate debt Level 3 84,22.66,139 94,22,66,138
Prefrence Share Capital Level 3 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 - - - -
Darivative Financial liabiity Level 2 2.89,26,724 2,88,26,724

Tota! Flnancial Liabilities 24,06,86,96,283 24,06,86,95 253 22,456,42,00 876 22,45,42,09,878 20,89,88,99,744 | 20,89,80,99,744

Other Notes

The management assessed thal the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade recsivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other financial liabilities approximates their
carying amounis largely due to the short-term maturities of these Instruments.

For Financial assets and Nabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrylng amounts are equal to thelr fair values.

The fair valug of the financial assets and financial labilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged in & current transaction betwean willing parties, other than
in a forcad or liguidation sale,

The foliowlng methods and assumplichs were used to eslimate the fair values:

The fair values for loans, securlty deposils were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in tha falr value hierarchy
due to the inclusion of unobservable Inputs including counterparty credlt risks, which has been assessed to be insignificant,

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on the discounted cash flows using a current borrewing rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in the falr value hierarchy due lo
the inclusion of unobsarvable nputs including own credit risks, which was agsessed as on the balance sheet date to be insigniflcant.

During the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfer Into and out of Level 3 fair value
measuremenis,

Explanation to the fair valus hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, quoted investments at fair value at each reporting date. Falr value is the price thal would be received to seli an asset or paid to
transfer a ablity in an orderly transaclion betwaen market participants al the measurement date. All assets and fiahiliies for which falr value is measured or disclosed In the financial
statemants ara categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest levet input that is significant ko the fair value measurement es a whole;

Level 1 hlerarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mulual funds that have quoled

Level 1 price. The fair value of all equlty Instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing ptice as at the repoerting period. The
mirtual funds are valsed using the closing NAV.
The tair value of financial instruments Mat are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, over-the-caunter derivatives) Is determined using valuation

Level 2 techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litle as possible on enlity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to falr value an
instrumenl are observabie, the inslrument is included In level 2,

Leval 3 If one or mare of e significant Inputs is not based o observable market data, the Instrument is included in level 3. This |s the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent

conslderation included in level 3,
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Amountin Rs.

Details of Hedging instrument:
Set out below, s @ comparison by class of the carrying amounts and falr value of the Company's financial instrumsits, other {han thase with canying amounis thal are reasenable
approximations of falr values:

Fair Value Falr Valug
i
Particulars 31 Miarch 2017 31 March 2015

Fair value hedge

Foreign exchange forward contracts - Payable 2,09,26,724 -

Interest Rate Swap - Receivable 10,34,512 -

a7. Financlal Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it lo market risk, liquidity risk and credit disk.

This nole explains the sources of risk which the entity |3 exposed to and how the enlity manages (he risk and the Impact of hedge accounting in Lhe financial slataments.

Risk Exposurs arlsing from Measurement Management
[astL
Credit fisk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, dervative Againg analysis Diversification of bank deposits, credil
redit ns! financial asseis and other financial assels Credik raling limits and letter of credit
. " " ’ Awallability of commiilted credit lines and
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabililies Rolling cash flow forecasls borrowing imites
.:vlari.(sl risk - Fulurs commercial iransactions recognised financlel assets and [Cash flow foracasting Forward forelgn exchange contracls
;::g;ga liabillties nat denominated In Indian rupee (INR} Sensllivity analysis Forelgn currency opiions

Capital mahagement

{a) Risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

- safeguard thair abllity to continue &s a going concern, so thal thay can conlinue

The Company monitors capital on ihe basis of the following ratlo:
Net deb (total barrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total equity (as shown In the balance sheet)

The gearing rafios were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 1 April 2015
Debt 24,03.07,66,529 | 24514041087 23,19,17,66,317
Less: Cash and bank balances 13,38,11.121 57.92,83,639 30,67,25345
Net Debt 23,90,68,57 408 23,93,47 67 448 22,79,5040,972
Total Equity 7.61,26,50,133 | 21,34,77,56,868 21,34,77,56,068
Net debt o equity raflo 3.14 112 1.07

Note- Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowing

Cred|t risk

The credit risk Is the risk of financlal loss arising from counter party faiing to discharge an obligation. The credit risk Is controlled by analysing credit limits and credit worthiness of customers
on conlinuous basis to whom the credit has been granted obtaining necessary approvals fer credi

The Company also menltors-outstanding trade recelvables regularly
Judgments are required in assassing the recoverabllity of overdue {

\oss Is based on historlcal 10ss experience and analysis of individual customer account balances,

and takes limely correclive { legal action for recovery.
rade receivable. The company follows the simplified approach for recognisation of impairment loss. The expecled cradit

to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

t and taking socurity deposits from trade channels.

" Asat As at As al
Age of recefyabies 31032017 3103.2018 0104.2015
Within the credit period 41,92,66,593 31,20,85,273 22,08,80976
0-60 days past due 10,04,30,808 12,37,06,305 4,25 46 604
61-180 days pas! due 3,45,99,432 4,88,75,248 1,80,48,237
181-365 days pasl due 6,12,92,719 1,28,15,926 39,99,728
More tham 365 days past dua 1,05,56,083 18,30,563 -
Movament in the expected credit loss allowance
Asal As al
31.03.2017 31032016
Balance at 1he beginning of the year . -
Movement in expacted credil loss allowance on lrade recelvables (4,75,38,518) -
Balance at the end of the year {4,75,38,518) -
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Liguidity Rlsk

Amount It Rs.

The Company determines lis liquidlty requirement in the short, medium and long term. This is done by drawings up cash forecast for short lerm and long term neads.

The Company manage ils liquidity fisk in 8 manner so as to meet ils normal financial obligations wi
cash flow while al the same time maintalning adequate cash and cash equivalent positlon, The management has al

ithout any significant delay or strees. Such
rranged for diversified fund

risk Is managed through ensuing operational
Ing sources and adopted 2 policy of maneging

assels wilh llguldity monitoring Tuture cash flow and liquidity on a regular basls. Surplus funds not immediately required are invested In certaln mutual funds and fixed deposit which provide

flexibility to hquidate. Besides, it generally has certaln undrawn credit facilities

Maturity Analysis for financial labillties

The following are the remalning contractual maturities of financial liatilitles

As at 31 March 2017

which can be assessed as and when

required; such credit facliitios are reviewsd at ragular basis.

Particytars On Demand Less than One year | 1 years to 5 years | More ihan § yoars Tetal
Non-derivative
Trade payables 1,89,60,34,382 1,89,60,34,382
Borrowings -
Rupes Term Loan 38,91,80,848 319,12,82,962| 13,48,67,70,105) 17,08,72,33,905
Foreign Currency Term Loan 61,31,45,010 2,74,95,60,048 2,90,13,64,308 6,16,40,59,366
Prafrence Share Capital - 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
Dther financial ligbilities
Interest acorued but not due on Jong -term borrowings 4,51,76473 4,61.75,473
Interast accrued but not due on Cumulaiive Redsemmable Preference Share Capital 2,76,71,233 2,78,71,233
Payable on behalf of employeas 10,61,40,298 10,61,49,208
Securily Deposits from customers 54,35,66,008 84,35,88,008
Security Deposils - Others 3,50,10,805 3,50,10,805
Retenlion money payable 12,67 82,094 12,67,82,094
Payable for capital expendliure 23,41,60,744 23,41,50,744
Others Payable 60,33,76,108 60C,33,76,109
Total - 4,81,92,44,004 6,94,08,43,000 16,38,81,24,413 28,14,82,11,417
Derivative
Foreigh Exchange forwards contracts 2,89,26,724 2,89,268,7124
As at 31 March 2016
Parliculars On Demand Less Ihan One year | 1 vears \o 5 years | More than 6 years Tota
Non-derivative
Trade payabies 1,85,42,32,420 1,0542,32,420
Borowings -
Rupea Term Loan - 2,38,02,24,972 16,37,46,08172 16,73,48,33,144
Foreign Currency Term Loan 50,43,85,093 251,44 ,56,475 82,03,19 981 3,83,81,82,449
Working capltal loans repayabie on demand from banks 37,75,44,036 - 37.75,44,006
Buyer's Credit 20,33,78,176 20,33,78,175
Commercial Paper 1,50,00,00,000 1,60,00,00,000
Other financial fiabllities
Interest accrued but not due on long -term borrowings 2.55,13,686 2.55,13,686
Payable on behalf of employees 11,17.86,623 11,17,86,623
Securily Deposils from cusiomers 74,56,28,544 74,56,29,544
Security Deposlts - Others 3,50,38,500 3,50,38,500
Retenlion money payable 12,25,86,036 122566026
Payable for capital expendiiure 13,03,32,783 13,03,32,782
Others Payable 70,51,80,307 70,51,80,307
Tolal 37,7544,038 6,03,80,44,067 4,87,46,81,447 | 17,19,40,281563 | 2848,61,97,703
As at 1 April 2015 )
Particulars On Demand Less than One year | 1years to 5 vears | More than & years Total
Non-derivative
Trade payables 1,97,43,68,271 1,97 4363271
Bormrowings
Rupee Tenm Loan 1,34,83,23,8156 7.22,54 60,340 7,36,54,71,446 15,82,02,55,610
Foreign Currency Term Loan 47,57,99,933 2,19,38,24,734 1.42,77,53,308 4.00,73,77.973
MNon Current Subordinate Debt - 1,09,50,00,000 1,09,50,00,000
Working capital loans repayable on demand from banks 15,83,46,336 - 16,83,46,338
Buyer's Cradit 2,13,45,20207 7,13,45,20,237
Other financlel liabilitles
Interest accrued but not due on long -term borrowings 2,18,58,670 2,18,58,670
Payable on behalf of employses 15,04,98,932 15,04,98,832
Saecuiity Deposits from customers 60,90,94,947 60,00,94,947
Security Depesils - Others 3,96,13,139 3,96,13,138
Reteniion monaey payable 11,14,60,544 11,15,60,544
Payable for capilal expendilure 8,47,52,974 6,47,52,674
Others Payable 24,20,02,295 24.2002,295
Total 16,83,46,336 7,17,23,88,758 10,51,42,85,082 8,78,32,24,762 | 26,62,82,44,920
Derivative

Foralgn Exchange forwards coniracts

The amounis are gross and undiscounted, and Include contractual Inlerest payments and exclude the im|
loans in the tables above reflact market forward Interest rales al the respective reporting dates and thesa am
deriva¥ive instruments may be different from the amaunt in the ahove tables as exchange rates change. Excep!
malurity analysis could occur significanily earlier, or at significantly different amounts. When th

conditions existing at the reporting date.

NEW DELH!
FRN 109208W

e amount payable Is nat fixed, 1

pact of nelting agreements (if any). The Interest payments cn variable Interest rate
ounts may change as markel interest rales changa. The future cash flows on
t for these financial liablities, it s not expected thal cash flows included in the
he amount dlsclosed has been determined with reference lo
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Amount In Rs.

Market Risk

Market risk is Whe risk that the fair valus or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel risk comprises thrae type of risks: Foreign
Exchange Rlsk, Interest Rate Risk and Other Price Risk.

Forelgn Exchange Risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arlsing from foreign currency transactions of imports and borrowing primarlly with respect lo USD and Euro. The forelgn currency

ransaction risk are managed through seleclive hedging programmes by way of forward conlracts, currency swaps and Interest rate swaps Including for underlying transactions having firm
commitmants or highly probable forecast of crystalisation.

The Company has taken cerlain Swap instrumens for hedging the horrowings in foreign clirency and has recegnised a gainfloss in the Statamenl of Profit & Loss on maasurernent of said
derivative inslruments at Eair vahte, On (he reporting date, the fair value of derlvative Instrument Is measured based upon valuation received from the aulhorised dealer (Bank).

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's axposure to forelgn currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

318l March 2017 31st March 2018 1st Aprll 2016
Particulars
uspb EUR uUsD EUR ust EUR
Financlal Liabililies
Foreign Currency Term Loan 6,13,62,86,630 - 3,583,91,62,471 - 409,73,77,822 -
Buyer's Credit - " 16,3548,811 1,98,29,361 69,81,79,859 1,43,53,40,382
Interest Accrued but nol due 1,87 87,539 - 1,77,12,856 46,824 1,68,67,226 1068,242
Trade Payables 2,36,56,137 14,65,11,362 47,45,647 146,265,745 - 27,70,580
Other currant liablities 69,99,927 - 12320318 - 4,18,22,082 -
Derlvalive Instrument
Foreign Exchange Forward Contract - Bu Faorelgn
Cunonty 9 ¥ Forelg (2,87,68,20,046) ; ; - - .
Nat Exposure to foraign currency risk {liabllities) 3,31,19,10,187 14,65,11,382 4,05,74,90,102 3,45,01,830 4,82,50,47,068 1,43,91,79,204

Sensitivity Anaulysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR against USD and EUR as at 3131 March would have affected Ihe measurement of financial instruments dencminated in a foreign
currency and affected equlty and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysls assumes that all other variables, In particular interest rates, remain constant and ighores any
impact of forecest sales and purchases,

31st March 2017 st March 2016
Particulars . . Impag] On L Impagt On
Sensliivity Analysis 5D E0R Sensitivily Analysls U0 EUR

Increase
Foreign Currency Exposure other than derivatlve
- Capital 5% {16,31,23,329) 5% {19,19,58,124}
- Revenue 5% (14,62,63,182) (73,26,660) 5% {1,09,16,362) (17,25,087)
Derivativas
- Capltal 5% - 5%
- Revenue 5% 14,37,01,002 5%

Total {16,55,95,509) {73,25,560) (20,28 74,505) {17,25,007)
Decrease
Fareign Currency Exposure other than derivative
- Capltal -5% 16,31,23,329 -5% 19,12,58,124
- Revenue -6% 14,62,63,182 73,25,569 -5% 1,08,16,382 17,25,087
Derivallves
- Gapital -5% - -5%
- Revehue 5% {14,37,91,002) -5%

Total 16,55,05,509 73,25,569 20,28,74,505 17,25,007

Interast Rate Rlsk

The Gompany is oxposed to risk due to interost rate fluctuation on long term borrowings. Such borrowings are based on fixed as well as floating interest rale. Interest rate riskis determined
by current market interest rates, projected debt servicing capability and view on future interest rate. Such interest rate risk is aclively evaluated and s managed through portfolic
diversification and exercise of prepayment/refinancing oplions where consldered necassary.

The Company Is also exposed to interest rate risk on surplus funds parked in fixed deposits and Investments viz. mutual funds, bonds. To manage such risks, sych investments are done
mainty for short durations, in llne with the expected business requiraments for such funds.
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Exposure to inferest rale risk

Amount In Rs,

Particulars

31st March 2017

345l March 20186

1st Aprll 2015

Fixed Rate Insiruments
10% Cumulative Preference Shara

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

Variable Rate Instruments
Qther Borrowings
Dernvative Liablllty
Interest Rate Swap

23,20,55,20,516

(2,87.42,27.245)

22,57,38,95,583

20,02,66,33 583

Net Exposure

20,33,12,93,271

22,57,35,85,683

20,02,66,33,582

Sensltivity Analysis

Profil or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowlngs as a resull of changes In inlerest rates, This analysis assu

rales, remaln constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

31st March 2017 31st March 2016
Particulars . Jmpact on . Impact on
— Sensitivity Analysis il befors [ Sensitivity Analysls Profl before 1z
Interest Rale Increass by - .
Financial Liabllitles 0.50% (11,60,27,603} 0.50% {11,26,69,978)
Intarest Rate Swap 0.50% 1,43,71,136 0.50% -
Total {10,18,56,466) {11,28,89,978}
Inlerest Rate Decreasa by . .
Financial Liabilllies -0.50% 11,60,27,603 -0.50% 11,28,69,978
Interest Rate Swap -0.60% (1.43,71,136) -0.50% -
Total 10,16,56,466 " 11,28,60,078

38. Operating leases

Obligations on long term, nen-cancellable operating leases
The lease rentals charged during the perod Is as under:

Year ended 31 i

Year ended 31 | Year ended 31

March 2017 March 2016 March 2018
Lease Rentals 1,00,03,776 97,63.468 47 30,967
Period of lease various varlous various

Future minlmum lease payable

As at 31.03.2017

Not jater than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Laler than & years

78,90,307
5,00,6850

g at 91,03.2018
70,88,249
77,289,113

As a1 31.03,.2018
14,75,365
1,26,65,029

The operating lease arrangements, are renewable af the request of the company by mutual agreement for future period,

39. Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016

Particular SBNs Other Denoninlion Total
Notes —
Closing cash In hand as on 08.11.2016 532,500 15,238 547 736
Add:- Permiited receipts - 6,74,498 6,74,198
Less:- Pemmitted payments - 5,37.016 537,016
Lass:- Amount deposited in Banks 5,32,600 - 5,32 500
Closing cashin hand as on 30.12.2018 - 152,718 152,718

40, Approval of Financlal Statements

The financlal statements are approved by tha Board of Direclors on 22nd May 2017
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FRN 105208W

mes that all other variables, in particular exchange




Rellance Cement Company Private Limited

Signature to Notes 1 to 40

As per our attached report of even date,

For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstration No.100208W
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Harsh V.Lodha

Ajay Gupta Bachh Raj Nahar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.030104 (DIN: 00394094) {DIN: 00049895)

Kolkata, May 22, 2017
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